
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Council 
  

To all 

Members of 

the Council 
 

 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 
2017 
 

 

Time: 7.30 PM 
 

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 

  

Published: Wednesday, 30 August 2017 

 Contact:  Lloyd White, Head of 
Democratic Services 
Tel: 01895 556743 
Email: lwhite@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at:  

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=117&Year=0  

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
 

Watching & recording this meeting 
 
You can watch this meeting on the Council's 
YouTube channel, live or archived. 
 
Residents and the media are also welcome to 
attend in person, and if they wish, report on the 
public part of the meeting. Any individual or 
organisation may record or film proceedings as 
long as it does not disrupt proceedings.  
 
It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. When present in the room, silent mode should be 
enabled for all mobile devices. 

 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with the 
Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee Room.  
 

Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use.  

 

Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations. 

 
 

 

 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

Prayers 
To be said by the Reverend Johnny Douglas. 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes  1 - 6 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2017 (attached)  
 

 

3 Declarations of Interest   

 To note any declarations of interest in any matter before the Council  
 

 

4 Mayor's Announcements  

5 Public Question Time  7 - 8 

 To take questions submitted by members of the public in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 10.  
 

 

6 Report of the Head of Democratic Services 9 - 12 

7 Accessible Hillingdon - Supplementary Planning Document  13 - 132 

 To consider the recommendation of Cabinet regarding the adoption of the 
SPD.  
 

 

8 Article 4 Direction To Protect Strategic Employment Land In The 
Borough  

133 - 140 

 To consider the adoption of an Article 4 Direction  
 

 

9 Members' Questions  141 - 142 

 To take questions submitted by Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rule 11  
 

 

10 Motions  143 - 144 

 To consider Motions submitted by Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 12  
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 

 

 

COUNCIL 
 
6 July 2017 
 
Meeting held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre, High 
Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 
 

Councillor Carol Melvin BSc (Hons) (Mayor) 
Councillor John Morgan (Deputy Mayor) 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Councillors: Shehryar Ahmad-

Wallana 
Lynne Allen 
Teji Barnes 
Jonathan Bianco 
Mohinder Birah 
Wayne Bridges 
Tony Burles 
Keith Burrows 
Roy Chamdal 
Alan Chapman 
George Cooper 
Judith Cooper 
Philip Corthorne 
Brian Crowe 
Peter Curling 
Catherine Dann 
Peter Davis 
Nick Denys 
 

Kanwal Dheer 
Jazz Dhillon 
Jas Dhot 
Jem Duducu 
Janet Duncan 
Beulah East 
Tony Eginton 
Duncan Flynn 
Neil Fyfe 
Narinder Garg 
Dominic Gilham 
Raymond Graham 
Becky Haggar 
John Hensley 
Patricia Jackson 
Allan Kauffman 
Judy Kelly 
Manjit Khatra 
 

Mo Khursheed 
Kuldeep Lakhmana 
Eddie Lavery 
Richard Lewis 
Michael Markham 
Douglas Mills 
Richard Mills 
John Morse 
June Nelson 
Susan O'Brien 
John Oswell 
Ray Puddifoot MBE 
John Riley 
David Simmonds CBE 
Jagjit Singh 
Brian Stead 
Michael White 
David Yarrow 
 

 OFFICERS PRESENT:  Fran Beasley, Jean Palmer, Paul Whaymand, Raj Alagh, 
Lloyd White, Mark Braddock, Morgan Einon, Beth Rainey and Neil Fraser 
 

11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Edwards, Gardner, Higgins, 
Jarjussey, Money, Palmer, Sansapuri, Seaman-Digby and Sweeting.  
 

12. MINUTES  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meetings held on 23 February and 11 May 
2017 be agreed as a correct record. 
 

13. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 The Mayor confirmed that she was now two months into her Mayoral year, and that 
those months had been tinged with sadness following the recent terror attacks, as 
well as the fire at Grenfell Tower. The Mayor extended her thoughts and prayers to all 
those affected by the tragedies. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



  

The Mayor went on to confirm that to date, she had attended over seventy 
engagements, including three on her first day. All had been very diverse and 
interesting, including the opening of a new care home at Ryefield Court, which was 
very impressive and included its own bar, cinema, and seven star accommodation. 
 
The recent launch of the Mayor's charity has been held on the previous Tuesday, and 
all three chosen charities had attended, including the Halo Foundation, who spoke 
movingly about the importance of their charitable work. 
 
Members were requested to record the 19 July in their diaries, as the first supper quiz 
was to be held on that evening.  
 

14. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Councillor Puddifoot moved the recommendation as set out in the report.  This was 
seconded by Councillor Simmonds and it was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Urgency decisions detailed in the report be noted. 
 

15. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 6.1 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR BRIDGES TO THE LEADER OF 
THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT: 
 
"Following the tragic incident at Grenfell Tower in Kensington and Chelsea and the 
actions of Camden Council to evacuate tower blocks now considered to be a danger 
to the lives of tenants and leaseholders, would the Leader of the Council please 
inform Council of the current situation relating to tower blocks in Hillingdon?" 
 
Councillor Puddifoot advised that, using the definition of a tower block as a building of 
more than 6 floors, Hillingdon had eleven tower blocks, with the tallest being fourteen 
floors high. All blocks had been inspected, and the Department for Communities and 
Local Government had been sent a return advising that Hillingdon had no high rise 
buildings with the aluminium composite cladding (ACM), as installed at Grenfell 
Tower.  
 
However, the inspections did show that the Council's four bison blocks, built in the 
early 1960's, had been re-clad in the early 1980's with brick cladding containing a 
polystyrene layer between the brick and the original concrete building. In view of this, 
the Council had engaged fire safety specialists and fire protection specialists to look 
at any potential fire hazard that could arise from this particular cladding. 
 
Their views had been received very recently, and while generally positive, it had been 
recommended that the Council review the fire stopping material around windows and 
vents. In addition the Council would be installing vertical fire breaks around the 
buildings (alongside the existing horizontal fire breaks.)  
 
It had previously been agreed that the windows at the Rabbs Mill House block be 
replaced, and in addition, a 'fire sock' would be installed around each window at the 
same time as these works were carried out. At the remaining blocks, windows were to 
be removed, and new window surrounds inserted. 
 
It was hoped that these works would begin in August, with all blocks completed by 
early December 2017. Letters would be hand delivered to both tenants and 

Page 2



  

leaseholders of these blocks, informing them of the specialist findings and 
recommended works.  As well as high rise blocks, Hillingdon had twenty-two smaller 
sheltered housing blocks, and the cladding and insulation in those blocks was 
currently being tested, with the results expected before the end of the month.  
 
The Council had a rolling programme of fire safety inspections, and prior to the 
Grenfell tragedy, had commenced a programme to upgrade all fire doors from the 
currently fitted universal fire doors to a newer available higher standard fire door. It 
had been decided to commence with the sheltered housing blocks, as these had the 
more vulnerable tenants, and work on this was taking place currently and would 
continue over the summer months. The plan to replace the fire doors in the high rise 
blocks had been due to take place after the work at the sheltered housing blocks had 
been completed, but had now been brought forward, and would take place over the 
coming months. 
 
To avoid lengthy statutory consultations with leaseholders in the high rise blocks, and 
to put the safety of residents first, it was confirmed that the Council would not charge 
leaseholders for the installation of their fire doors.  
 
The Council had also recently replaced the fire alarm systems at six sheltered 
housing blocks, and had commenced with replacing lighting at five of the high rise 
tower blocks. All sheltered housing and high rise blocks in the Borough had premises 
information blocks fitted, which contained information of layouts, the location of any 
asbestos in the building, and details of higher dependency residents, to aid the Fire 
Brigade in prioritising actions in the event of a fire.  
 
On Monday 26 June 2017, Council officers had met with London Fire Brigade 
technical officers and a station officer to review the work plans already underway, as 
well as the Council's proposed work plans. Council officers confirmed that once test 
results on the cladding used within the tower blocks were available, these would be 
shared with the Fire Brigade. Council officers would also undertake joint visits to the 
blocks, to deal with any issues or concerns that the Brigade might have. The Fire 
Bridge welcomed Hillingdon's approach, and the actions already being undertaken to 
safeguard Hillingdon residents. 
 
Regarding the installation of sprinkler systems, the Fire Brigade advised that they 
were awaiting Government advice on retrofitting. However, rather than wait for this, 
the fitting of sprinkler systems in communal areas of all high rise blocks had been 
authorised, as well as the consultation of tenants and leaseholders on the matter of 
fitting sprinklers inside their homes. 
 
Members were reminded that they had received a copy of the letter sent to residents 
of Hillingdon's tower blocks, as well as the updated advice issued by the London Fire 
Brigade in the previous week. The letter to residents included details of a dedicated 
helpline, whilst the advice from the fire brigade referred to their 'stay put' policy, which 
advised that in the event of a fire, all residents not directly affected should remain in 
their homes, unless directed to leave by the Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
Advice on fire safety in purpose-built blocks, issued by the Local Government Group 
in 2011, and followed by Hillingdon, stated that where the 'stay put' policy was in 
effect, it was unnecessary and undesirable for a fire alarm to be provided, as such an 
alarm would inevitably lead to a proliferation of false alarms. This would place a 
burden on emergency services and would lead to residents ignoring warnings of 
genuine fires. However, the Council would adhere to any new guidance on fire 

Page 3



  

alarms, should any be forthcoming.  
 
Members were advised that the Council had been, and would continue, to do all that it 
could to keep its residents safe from the risk of major fire. Councillor Puddifoot went 
on to thank Council officers for their hard work, not only over the previous three 
weeks, but also for what was done on a regular and routine basis. Prior to the tragedy 
at Grenfell Tower, Hillingdon had not received any concerns from residents or 
Members about fire safety in high rise blocks, and whilst the Council was confident 
that any risk was being managed, it was important that the there was no complacency 
in such matters. 
 
By way of a supplementary question, Councillor Bridges asked whether the Leader of 
the Council agreed with the recent statement by John McDonnell, MP, that the victims 
of the Grenfell Tower tragedy had been 'murdered' by political decisions that had 
been taken over recent decades?  
 
Councillor Puddifoot advised that whilst forty-five Councils of all political colours, 
though mainly Labour Councils, had tower blocks with the same cladding as present 
at Grenfell Tower, there was currently no information as to why the decision had been 
made to use that particular cladding. A report into the matter would be published in 
due course, which would highlight further detail including the apparent failure of 
Camden Council to install fire doors, to fit plastic gas pipes, and their decision to use 
ACM cladding. It would be sensible to await this further information before 
apportioning any blame. 
 
However, Councillor Puddifoot expressed his opinion that no one present at Camden 
Council in 2004, when planning permission for the tower block had been granted, 
would have knowingly put residents lives at risk, and this was true for the London 
Borough of Kensington and Chelsea,  as well as the other 43 councils who had 
installed ACM cladding. 
 
The dictionary definition of murder was to kill unlawfully and with premeditation, and 
regardless of political views, it was impossible to believe that local Councillors and 
Members of Parliament across the county had made premeditated decisions to kill or 
harm their residents. Whilst Mr McDonnell's comments could be seen as rabble 
rousing, it was incumbent on those who held public office to act responsibly and 
sensibly, and in this instance, the Leader of the Council did not consider that Mr 
McDonnell had done so. 
 

16. MOTIONS  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 7.1 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR EGINTON 
 
Councillor Eginton moved, and Councillor Curling seconded, the following motion: 
 

"That this Council supports the independence of the committee system form 
the executive and, in order to further establish that independence, resolves that 
the Overview and Scrutiny committees need to be rigorous to ensure that the 
executive can both be supported and held to account. Council confirms that the 
decision as to which matters are to be considered by all such committees 
should not be subject to informal consultation or veto by members of the 
Cabinet." 

 
Following debate on the motion (Councillors Corthorne, Riley, and Simmonds) it was 

Page 4



  

put to the vote and the motion was lost.   
 
7.2 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR BURROWS 
 
Councillor Burrows moved, and Councillor D. Mills seconded, the motion as set out in 
the order of business. 
 
Following debate on the motion (Councillors Curling, Crowe, and Duncan) it was put 
to the vote and unanimously agreed.   
 
RESOLVED:  That Hillingdon Council acknowledges that car ownership is vital 
to our residents as a means of going about their daily business, especially if 
having to travel across the Borough north/south. 

 
The Council therefore reaffirms its current planning policy relating to car 
parking spaces for new developments and will resist attempts to reduce this 
standard at the cost of higher density of future developments. 

 
Council therefore instructs the Chief Executive to write to the Mayor of London 
reminding him of the importance of the car to Hillingdon residents and our 
intention to maintain the existing parking standards policy. 
 
7.3 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR NELSON 
 
Councillor Nelson moved, and Allen seconded, the following motion: 
 

"That, since the Council took away the dedicated caretakers from our tower 
blocks etc, and replaced them with a team of off-site cleaners, residents have 
noted that they are not receiving the same good service that they did 
previously. General maintenance, which ensured buildings were once clean 
and free from dumped rubbish, is not being carried out. 
 
This is giving rise to fire hazards and vermin damaging to residents' health and 
wellbeing. For this reason Council asks the Social Services, Housing and 
Public Health Scrutiny Committee to investigate reinstating dedicated 
caretakers to assist in implementing the planned maintenance programme for 
Council buildings." 

 
Following debate on the motion (Councillors Corthorne, and Hensley), it was put to 
the vote and the motion was lost.   
 
7.4 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR MORSE 
 
Councillor Morse moved, and Councillor Curling seconded, the following motion: 
 

"That this Council welcomes the Leader's use of emergency powers in respect 
of fire safety and prevention in Council owned blocks of flats, including the 
replacement of fire doors. 
 
Council requests that the Leader and Cabinet consider that approval be given 
to the installation of sprinkler systems in the Council's high rise housing and 
community (LEA) schools so that our residents are put first when it comes to 
being safe in their homes and their children are safe at school. Insurance cost 
savings can be calculated and offset against the reduction in risk to the loss of 

Page 5



  

the Council's assets." 
 
Councillor Puddifoot moved, and Councillor Simmonds seconded, an amendment to 
the effect that the motion read as follows: 
 

"That this Council notes the programme of fire safety inspections at Council 
blocks of flats and the decision made earlier this year to replace all fire doors, 
currently universal standard doors, with what is regarded as the best currently 
available on the market. 
 
In view of the likely demand for fire doors across the country that this Council 
welcomes the use of emergency powers in respect of fire safety and prevention 
in Council owned blocks of flats, including replacement fire doors to ensure 
availability of stock to complete the programme for all blocks of flats as 
planned. 
 
Council notes that current legislation does not require residential blocks to 
have sprinkler systems and that this has not been a recommendation following 
Fire Service inspections. However, Council supports the Leader of the 
Council's decision that sprinkler systems be installed in communal areas of 
blocks of flats and that tenants and leaseholders will be consulted on the 
installation of sprinklers in individual properties, as well as reviewing the use of 
this measure in other Council buildings." 

 
Following debate (Councillor Bianco and Morse), it was unanimously: 
 
RESOLVED:  That this Council notes the programme of fire safety inspections 
at Council blocks of flats and the decision made earlier this year to replace all 
fire doors, currently universal standard doors, with what is regarded as the best 
currently available on the market. 

 
In view of the likely demand for fire doors across the country that this Council 
welcomes the use of emergency powers in respect of fire safety and prevention 
in Council owned blocks of flats, including replacement fire doors to ensure 
availability of stock to complete the programme for all blocks of flats as 
planned. 

 
Council notes that current legislation does not require residential blocks to 
have sprinkler systems and that this has not been a recommendation following 
Fire Service inspections. However, Council supports the Leader of the Council's 
decision that sprinkler systems be installed in communal areas of blocks of 
flats and that tenants and leaseholders will be consulted on the installation of 
sprinklers in individual properties, as well as reviewing the use of this measure 
in other Council buildings. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.45 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Lloyd White, Head of Democratic Services on 01895 
556743.  Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and 
Members of the Public. 

 

Page 6



Council - 07 September 2017 
 

 
5.1 QUESTION FROM MS JEANNE SMITH OF STRATFORD ROAD, YEADING TO 

THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT: 
 

The Council's formal complaints procedure for handling complaints about services 
that the Council directly provides, is clear, open and transparent and it is easily 
understood by members of the public. Democratic Services can supply a hard copy 
of the procedure and it can be downloaded from the Council's website. The Council's 
formal complaints procedure follows the standard three stages of resolution adopted 
by all public bodies: 

• Stage 1 at the lowest level, 

• Stage 2 at Director level when witness statements are admitted, 

• Stage 3 at The Chief Executive level. 
 
Following that, a complaint can be escalated to the Ombudsman and that is the final 
stage of the formal complaints process. 
 
The same set of clear, open and transparent standards, with set times for 
investigating, does not apply to complaints made to the Council by a resident, a non-
resident, or a partner organisation, or any other body, that is deemed not to fall 
under the category of a 'formal complaint'. 
 
Democratic Services cannot supply a copy of the due process and procedures 
followed by officers in investigating non-formal complaints. Neither is the due 
process and procedure available to download on the Council's website. Will the 
Council now urgently review the matter, to ensure that this grey area of complaints 
handling is seen to be fair, open and transparent with set timescales, that follows 
due process and procedures, and that is available to the public, via Democratic 
Services and the Council's website? 
 
Extract from the Council's Corporate Complaints Procedure submitted in 
support of the question: 
 
INFORMAL COMPLAINTS 

 
We will always try to resolve enquiries/concerns by way of 'service requests' by 
talking through problems with you, without the need to go through our formal 
complaints procedure. We will aim to put things right and give you a timescale when 
we will respond to you, detailing the action we have taken. 
 
If we are unable to resolve the complaint to your satisfaction then we will tell you 
how to proceed within the formal complaint procedure which is outlined below. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Council – 07 September  2017 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
Reporting Officer: Head of Democratic Services 
 
(i) URGENT IMPLEMENTATION OF DECISIONS 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Urgency decisions detailed below be noted. 
 
Information 
 
1.  The Constitution allows a Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision to be implemented 

before the expiry of the 5 day call-in provided there is agreement from the Chief 
Executive and the Chairman of the Executive Scrutiny Committee to waive this. All 
such decisions are to be reported for information only to the next full Council 
meeting. 

 
2. Since the 6 July 2017 Council meeting, the following decisions have been made 

using urgency procedures: 
 

Date of 
Decision 

Decision Type / Nature of Decision Decision-Maker 

28/06/2017 Uxbridge Business Improvement 
District 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for 
Community, Commerce & 
Regeneration 

28/06/2017 Replacement of Communal Boilers - St 
Catherine's Farm Court and 
Associated Capital Release (Housing 
Revenue Account Works to Stock 
Programme 2017/18 - Release No 15) 
- PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

07/07/2017 Appointment of consultancy for the 
Redevelopment of the Boxing 
Clubhouse and Football Club Facilities 
in Field End Recreation Ground - 
PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

17/07/2017 Appointment of Consultants for Works 
at Rabbs Mill House, Uxbridge and 
Fitzgerald House, Glenister House and 
Wellings House, Hayes and associated 
capital release - PART II HRA Works 
to Stock 2017/18 Programme -  

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

17/07/2017 Housing Revenue Account New 
General Needs Housing Stock 2017/18 
(Housing Buy Back Scheme) Release 
No 1 - PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

26/07/2017 Transport for London (TfL) Local 
Implementation Plan (LIP) 2016/17 - 
Capital Release No 8 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

09/08/2017 Housing Revenue Account - New 
General Needs Housing Stock - 
2017/18 (Housing Buy-Back Scheme) 
Release No. 2 – PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



Council – 07 September  2017 

Date of 
Decision 

Decision Type / Nature of Decision Decision-Maker 

09/08/2017 Disabled Facilities Grants 2017/18 - 
Release No.7 – drawdown report for 
various applicant properties – PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

09/08/2017 Contract extension - winter gritting 
vehicles – PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

22/08/2017 HRA Major Adaptations to Property 
2017/18 Release No.6 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

22/08/2017 Housing Revenue Account Works to 
Stock 2017/18 Programme - 
Replacement of electrical night storage 
heaters and associated electrical 
safety works at Rabbs Mill House, 
Uxbridge and Fitzgerald House, 
Glenister House and Wellings House, 
Hayes and associated Capital Release 
(Release No 22) - PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

22/08/2017 Housing Revenue Account Works to 
Stock Programme 2017/18: Erection of 
scaffolding and associated access 
equipment to enable fire safety works 
at Rabbs Mill House, Uxbridge and 
Fitzgerald House, Glenister House and 
Wellings House, Hayes and associated 
Capital Release (Release No 25) - 
PART II 

Leader of the Council / 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property & Business Services 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS: Decision Notices 

 

(ii) REVIEW OF COUNCIL CONSTITUTION - RESIDENTS' SERVICES SCHEME OF 
DELEGATIONS AND STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That for all functions under the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
Gambling Act 2005, the Residents Services Scheme of Delegations, 
(Administrative, Technical & Business Support section) be amended to include 
the following wording: 
 
"Where a Ward Councillor makes representations upon an application within 
their ward, in writing, to the Head of Administrative, Technical and Business 
Services within the appropriate statutory period of consultation for the 
application, that application shall be submitted to the Licensing Sub-Committee 
for determination. The Ward Councillor must include in their representations the 
reasons why they wish the application to be determined by the Sub-Committee." 
 
In addition the role of the Ward Councillor within the Statement of Licensing 
Policy be amended accordingly. 
 

Page 10



Council – 07 September  2017 

Information 
 
1. Members will be aware that the Scheme of Delegations relating to the 

determination of planning matters within the authority includes a provision for 
Ward Councillors to have an application 'called-in' for determination by the 
appropriate Planning Committee even if that application would normally have been 
dealt with by officers under delegated authority. 

 
2. It is recommended that this facility should be extended to Ward Councillors in 

relation to Licensing applications. 
 

Legal Implications. 
 

3. The Borough Solicitor confirms that the Licensing Act 2003 guidance issued by the 
Home Office in April 2017 includes the general principle that, where there have 
been no representations made in relation to an application, such an application 
must be granted, subject only to conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. Hearings should not be held for 
uncontested applications. 

 
4. Should representations be made by a Ward Councillor, it is perfectly in order for 

the Council to adopt the proposed procedure for those representations to be heard 
by the Sub-Committee. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: None 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Council – 07 September 2017 

‘ACCESSIBLE HILLINGDON’ - SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 

DOCUMENT  

 
Reporting Officer: Head of Democratic Services 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This report provides information on the outcome of the consultation for Hillingdon's Draft 
Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). Cabinet has recommended 
the revised SPD to Council for adoption. 
 
CABINET RECOMMENDATION: That the 'Accessible Hillingdon' Supplementary Planning 
Document be adopted with immediate effect for planning policy purposes. 
 
The detailed Supplementary Planning Document is available online with copies in Party Offices 
and also via this link here. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Since the adoption of the current Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document the 
Government’s National Technical Housing Standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. As a 
result, changes were required to Hillingdon’s policy, in order to update it. 
 
On 16 March 2017, Cabinet approved the Draft Revised Accessible Hillingdon SPD for public 
consultation and instructed officers to report back to a future meeting of Cabinet on the outcome 
of that and any recommendations for changes to the document prior to its consideration for 
adoption by full Council. As part of the wider consultation phase, the SPD was also considered 
by the Residents’ & Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee, in accordance with 
constitutional requirements on policy framework documents. 
 
Cabinet on 27 July 2017 received the outcome of all the consultations, considered the small 
number of constructive comments received and gave approval for the SPD to be recommended 
to Council for adoption. Cabinet welcomed the fact that the SDP would deliver a clear message 
on the required standards of Inclusive Design by developers for those residents with disabilities.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
The cost of publishing the revised SPD will be approximately £1,900, which will be contained 
within approved 2017/2018 non-staffing planning budgets within Residents Services and part 
recouped through a charge for copies to developers etc. Residents with a disability or sensory 
impairment requesting a copy will receive one free-of-charge. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
The Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is a statutory document, and the legal 
requirements in relation to its preparation and adoption as a local development document are 
prescribed by the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (the 
2012 Regulations). An SPD must be produced in accordance with the 2012 Regulations which 
requires preparation of a statement setting out the persons that have been consulted in the 
preparation of a SPD, a summary of main issues raised and how these issues have been 
addressed in the SPD. The report to Cabinet on 27 July 2017 confirmed that these requirements 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



Council – 07 September 2017 

were met. The Council’s Constitution also requires Cabinet to recommend to Council any new 
or revised policy framework document. 
 
Background Papers: none. 

Page 14



Council

Page 15



Page 16



1
 

 

Page 17



2
 

 C
o

n
t
e

n
t
s

 

      

W
h

ee
lc

h
ai

r 
A

cc
es

si
b

le
 a

n
d

 W
h

ee
lc

h
ai

r 
A

d
ap

ta
b

le
 D

w
el

li
n

g
s 

M
4

(3
)

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
2

7
   

S
tr

ee
ts

ca
p

e
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.5

7
 

A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 t
o

 B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

an
d

 F
ac

il
it

ie
s.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

6
0

 

R
am

p
 D

es
ig

n
 E

x
am

p
le

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
6

2
 

A
cc

es
si

b
le

 P
ar

k
in

g
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.6

5
 

B
lu

e 
B

ad
g
e 

an
d

 B
ro

w
n

 B
ad

g
e 

P
ar

k
in

g
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.6

7
 

A
cc

es
si

b
le

 P
ar

k
in

g
 D

es
ig

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
6

8
 

E
n

tr
an

ce
s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
6

9
 

E
n

tr
an

ce
 d

o
o

rs
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.7
0

 

L
o
b

b
ie

s.
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

7
1

 

R
ec

ep
ti

o
n

 A
re

as
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.7

2
 

In
te

rn
al

 D
o

o
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
rr

id
o

rs
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.7

3
 

L
if

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
7

4
 

P
la

tf
o

rm
 l

if
ts

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
7

4
 

P
as

se
n

g
er

 L
if

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.7
5

 

In
te

rn
al

 s
ta

ir
s.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.7
6

 

T
o

il
et

s 
an

d
 C

h
an

g
in

g
 F

ac
il

it
ie

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.7

7
 

C
h

an
g
in

g
 F

ac
il

it
ie

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
7

9
 

C
h

an
g
in

g
 P

la
ce

s 
T

o
il

et
s.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

7
9

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 W

ay
fi

n
d

in
g

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.8
1

 

S
ig

n
ag

e
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.8
1

 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
8

1
 

Page 18



3
 

 

H
ea

ri
n

g
 E

n
h

an
ce

m
en

t 
S

y
st

em
s.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.8
2

 

E
n

tr
y
 P

h
o

n
es

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
8

2
 

A
la

rm
s.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.8

2
 

S
to

ra
g
e 

F
ac

il
it

ie
s.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.8

3
 

R
ef

re
sh

m
en

t 
ar

ea
s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

8
3

 

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t.

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

8
3

 

M
ea

n
s 

o
f 

E
sc

ap
e

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

8
4

 

A
1

 R
et

ai
l 

(i
n

cl
u

d
es

 S
u
p

er
m

ar
k

et
s)

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

8
6

 

A
3

 F
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 D

ri
n

k
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
8

8
 

S
p

o
rt

s 
an

d
 L

ei
su

re
 V

en
u

es
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.8

9
 

C
in

em
as

, 
T

h
ea

tr
es

 a
n

d
 O

th
er

 P
la

ce
s 

o
f 

A
ss

em
b

ly
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
9

0
 

H
o

te
ls

, 
M

o
te

ls
 a

n
d

 S
tu

d
en

t 
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
9

1
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 
B

u
il

d
in

g
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.9

3
 

C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 H

is
to

ri
c 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.9
4

 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 P

ar
k

s 
an

d
 O

p
en

 S
p

ac
es

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
9

5
    

 

Page 19



4
 

  

Page 20



5
 

 

 
 

Page 21



6
 

  

Page 22



7
 

 

Page 23



8
 

 

Page 24



9
 

 

· ·

Page 25



1
0

 

     

Page 26



1
1

 

 

Page 27



1
2

 

 

Page 28



1
3

 

 

· · · · · ·

Page 29



1
4

 

 

  

 

Page 30



1
5

 

  
 

Page 31



1
6

 

 

· · · · ·

   
 

Page 32



1
7

 

    
 

Page 33



1
8

 

 In
te

rn
a

l 
C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 A
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 D

o
o

rw
a

y
s 

 

Page 34



1
9

 

 D
o

o
r 

w
id

th
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
d

in
g

-e
d

g
e

 

  

      

  

  

Page 35



2
0

 

  
 

Page 36



2
1

 

 

 

 

Page 37



2
2

 

  

               

 

  
 

Page 38



2
3

 

   
 

Page 39



2
4

 

 

· · · · ·

 
 

Page 40



2
5

 

 

· · ·

Page 41



2
6

 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

Page 42



 
2

7
 

 

 
 

Page 43



 
2

8
 

 

· ·

· · · · · · ·

  
 

Page 44



 
2

9
 

 

Page 45



 
3

0
 

 

· ·

  
 

Page 46



 
3

1
 

 

 
 

Page 47



 
3

2
 

 

· · ·

 

Page 48



 
3

3
 

 

Page 49



 
3

4
 

 

· ·

  
 

Page 50



 
3

5
 

   
 

Page 51



 
3

6
 

 P
ri

v
a

te
 E

n
tr

a
n

ce
s 

     
 

Page 52



 
3

7
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 53



 
3

8
 

 

· · ·

Page 54



 
3

9
 

 

· · · ·

Page 55



 
4

0
 

 

Page 56



 
4

1
 

 

Page 57



 
4

2
 

 

· · · · ·

· ·

Page 58



 
4

3
 

 

· · · ·

Page 59



 
4

4
 

 

· · ·

Page 60



 
4

5
 

 · · ·  

Page 61



 
4

6
 

 

·

Page 62



 
4

7
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 63



 
4

8
 

 

Page 64



 
4

9
 

 

Page 65



 
5

0
 

 

· ·

Page 66



 
5

1
 

 

Page 67



 
5

2
 

 

Page 68



 
5

3
 

 

Page 69



 
5

4
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 70



 
5

5
 

 

· · · · · · · · · ·

Page 71



 
5

6
 

 

Page 72



 
5

7
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 73



 
5

8
 

 

· · · · ·

Page 74



 
5

9
 

 

· ·

· ·

Page 75



 
6

0
 

 

· · · · ·

Page 76



 
6

1
 

 

· · ·

· · · · · ·

·

Page 77



 
6

2
 

 

Page 78



 
6

3
 

 

· · · · · · · ·

· · · · ·

Page 79



 
6

4
 

 

Page 80



 
6

5
 

 

Page 81



 
6

6
 

 

· · ·

Page 82



 
6

7
 

 

Page 83



 
6

8
 

  

Page 84



 
6

9
 

  

· · · · ·

Page 85



 
7

0
 

 

· · · · · ·

Page 86



 
7

1
 

 

Page 87



 
7

2
 

 

· · ·

Page 88



 
7

3
 

 

· · · ·

Page 89



 
7

4
 

 

Page 90



 
7

5
 

 

· · · · · ·

 
 

Page 91



 
7

6
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 92



 
7

7
 

 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Page 93



 
7

8
 

 

Page 94



 
7

9
 

 

· · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Page 95



 
8

0
 

 

Page 96



 
8

1
 

 

·
o
ld

e
r,

 d
is

a
b
le

d
, 

a
n
d
 v

is
u
a
lly

 i
m

p
a
ir
e
d
 p

e
o
p
le

· · · ·

Page 97



 
8

2
 

  

· ·

A
la

rm
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 t

a
k

e
 in

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
ri

n
g

 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 f

la
sh

in
g

 b
e

a
co

n
s 

a
n

d
/o

r 
in

 l
a

rg
e

 o
r 

co
m

p
le

x 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
, 

li
k

e
d

 t
o

 a
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 p
a

g
in

g
 s

y
st

e
m

. 

Page 98



 
8

3
 

  

· · · ·

Page 99



 
8

4
 

 

·

Page 100



 
8

5
 

 

· · · · · ·

Page 101



 
8

6
 

  

·
 

·
 

·

 

·

 

·

 

·

 

·

 

Page 102



 
8

7
 

 

· ·

Page 103



 
8

8
 

  

· · · ·

     
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 104



 
8

9
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 105



 
9

0
 

 

· · · ·

Page 106



 
9

1
 

 

· · · · · · · · · · ·

Page 107



 
9

2
 

 

Page 108



 
9

3
 

 

· · · · ·

Page 109



 
9

4
 

 

Page 110



 
9

5
 

 

· · · · · · ·

Page 111



 
9

6
 

 D
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 A

cc
es

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

ts

· · · · · · · · ·

Page 112



 
9

7
 

 

· · · · · · · · · · · · ·
 

Page 113



 
9

8
 

 

· · · · ·

· · · ·

· · · ·

 

Page 114



 
9

9
 

 

Page 115



 1
0

0
 

 

Page 116



 1
0

1
 

 

Page 117



 1
0

2
 

 

Page 118



 1
0

3
 

 

Page 119



 1
0

4
 

 

 

Page 120



 1
0

5
 

 

Page 121



 1
0

6
 

 

Page 122



 1
0

7
 

 

 

 

Page 123



 1
0

8
 

 

 

Page 124



 1
0

9
 

 

 

Page 125



 1
1

0
 

 

  

Page 126



 1
1

1
 

 

· · ·

Page 127



 1
1

2
 

 

· ·

Page 128



 1
1

3
 

 

· ·

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.w

il
e

y
.c

o
m

//
le

g
a

cy
/w

il
e

y
ch

i/
sa

w
y
e

r/

· ·

)

· · · · ·

Page 129



 1
1

4
 

 

· · · · · · · · · · ·

Page 130



 1
1

5
 

 

· · ·

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Council - 07 September 2017 

ADOPTION OF ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION TO PROTECT STRATEGIC 

EMPLOYMENT LAND IN THE BOROUGH  

 
Reporting Officer: Head of Democratic Services 
 
Summary 
 
In November 2016 Council agreed that officers should prepare an Article 4 direction 
withdrawing permitted development rights for office and light industrial floor-space within 
identified strategic locations. A formal notice giving the Council's intention to create an Article 4 
Direction was sent to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government on 24 
November 2016 incorporating the statutory 12 month notice period. The notice advised the 
Secretary of State of the Council's intention to adopt an Article 4 Direction on 22 November 
2017. Furthermore from 23 November 2016 a 1 month consultation period occurred with 
interested parties across the locations subject to the proposed Article 4 Direction. There were 
only two responses received. A question was raised concerning whether existing prior 
approvals not yet implemented will be protected; a legal view on this issue is given in the report. 
Such a change is not proposed and it is considered that this issue should be left to the 
Secretary of State to take a view on (which he has done so on other similar Article 4 directions). 

 

RECOMMENDATION: That the results of the consultation be noted and the 
commencement of the Article 4 Direction from 22 November 2017, be approved. 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
To protect key employment land in the Borough from changes to planning regulations which 
would enable strategic office and light industrial floor-space to be converted to residential use 
through a simplified planning process. 
 

Information 

 
Supporting Information 
 
1.  Council considered a report on 3 November 2016 concerning the proposed Article 4 

Direction. Council agreed to protect key employment land in the Borough from changes 
to planning regulations. It was noted that there were a number of sites in the Borough 
that were important economically and provided significant local employment. 

 
2.  To prevent a right to compensation the Article 4 Direction must be advertised at least 12 

months in advance of it becoming operational. It should be noted that on 2 October 2017 
a landowner will not be able to start immediately converting a light industrial building to  
residential use as they would first  need a prior approval consent which could take up to 
56 days. Therefore to ensure an Article 4 Direction is effective prior to the Legislation 
becoming enacted, the Council advertised the Article 4 Direction from 23 November to 23 
December 2016. 
 

3.  The proposed Article 4 Direction includes all employment locations of strategic regional 
importance as identified through the Council's Local Plan and the Mayor's London Plan. 
The proposed Article 4 direction includes the following sites (identified on the two plans 
attached as appendices) should be protected from prior approval conversions to 

Agenda Item 8

Page 133



Council - 07 September 2017 

residential use as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies 
(Adopted 2012): 
 
Strategic Industrial Locations - Preferred Industrial Locations 
Uxbridge Industrial Area 
Hayes Industrial Area - designated areas of PIL outside the Housing Zone 
Strategic Industrial Locations: Industrial Business Parks 
North Uxbridge Industrial Estate 
Proposed Locally Significant Employment Locations 
Stockley Park 
Bath Road Sites 
Proposed Locally Significant Industrial Sites 
Packet Boat Lane LSIS 
Areas for prevention of office to residential conversions 
Uxbridge Town Centre 
Heathrow Perimeter 
Stockley Park  

 
4. There would be a limited financial cost of publicising an Article 4 Direction (less than 

£5k). There would also be loss of fee income, but at £80 a prior approval application this 
would also be limited given the likely relatively small scale of such applications.  

 
5. The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 states 

that approval to make an Article 4 Direction is not a Cabinet function and therefore must 
be carried out by full Council or another appropriate Council Committee.  

 
Results of Public Consultation Undertaken  
 
6.  Site notices were erected at all of the locations identified under paragraph 3 above. A 

newspaper advert placed in the Uxbridge Gazette and information placed on the 
Council's website. A bespoke letter was sent to the Hillingdon Chamber of Commerce. 
The public consultation is considered to have met the relevant statutory requirements. 
One local resident commented as follows: 

 
"Numerous lamp-posts and road signs in Uxbridge town centre and Uxbridge Moor 
currently carry printed notices bearing your name, about no doubt important but to me at 
least obscure changes to planning policy. I have no view on the changes themselves..." 
 
What this response demonstrates if nothing else is that the use of site notices was an 
effective means of consultation. No response was received from the Hillingdon Chamber 
of Commerce. 

 
7.  One response was received from a planning consultancy known to represent various 

property developers with an interest in developing land in the Borough. The comments 
received are copied in full below: 

  
"As you may be aware, Progress Planning act for a variety of landowners and developers 
that operate within the London Borough of Hillingdon and as such have a profound 
interest in the above. Having dealt with such matters across a range of different Local 
Planning Authorities, it is considered that the draft Article 4 should include a clause that 
expressly removes buildings or land that already benefit from a consent under Class O. 
Should the Council not include such a clause, intervention from the Secretary of State for 

Page 134



Council - 07 September 2017 

Communities and Local Government is likely to be forthcoming. This was experienced by 
the London Borough of Richmond and other Local Authorities who took a similar 
approach. To avoid such an intervention, it is strongly recommended to include the 
following text: other than in respect of any building or land in relation to which prior 
approval under Class J.2 of Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 or Class O of Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the GPDO has been 
granted, or under the terms of those Parts is treated as granted before the date on 
which the Direction takes effect" 

 
 The Council's legal team were requested to consider further the above comments. They 

have advised that in the first instance the representations referred to in the above 

paragraph have been made outside the published statutory representation period (23 

November 2016 - 23 December 2016) for the Article 4 Direction specified in the GPDO. 
Whilst the representations have been taken into account by the Council, the Direction is 
now with the Secretary of State for consideration who has the power to modify or cancel 
any direction under Article 4 at any time before or after its confirmation. Full legal 
comments on this matter are given under the legal officer's response to this report.  

 
Feedback from the Secretary of State 
 
8 No response has been received from the Secretary of State to date. In response to a 

chasing e-mail in July 2017 from the Council's legal team the following response was 
given:  "This case is currently in DCLG’s Development Management division for 
consideration". 

 
Financial Implications 
 
9. Direct costs associated with implementation of an Article 4 direction to protect key 

strategic office and light industrial floor-space would be limited to advertising the new 
arrangements, which is estimated to cost no more than £5k. This would be managed 
within existing Residents Services operating budgets. There would be a de minimus loss 
of fee income (less than £5k over the previous two years) from implementation of this 
Article 4; however this can be managed within existing budgets where planning income 
streams continue to outperform MTFF assumptions. 

 

Implications 
 
Corporate Finance 
 
Corporate Finance has reviewed this report and confirms the financial implications outlined 
above, noting that the proposed Article 4 direction is intended to maintain employment floor 
space within the borough. The impact of the proposed Article 4 direction on the Council's 
broader Medium Term Financial Forecast will be de minimus. 
 
Legal 
 
In accordance with The General Permitted Development Order 2015 (as amended) ('GPDO'), 
an Article 4 direction shall not come into force unless confirmed by the Council. In deciding 
whether or not to confirm the Article 4 Direction, paragraph 1(9) of Schedule 3 of the GPDO 
states that the Council must take into account any representations received during the period in 
which the direction was advertised. The Council has considered the representations and note 
that one of the representations received was outside the published statutory period. Whilst it 

Page 135



Council - 07 September 2017 

has been taken into account, the Council notes that the Direction is with the Secretary of State 
for consideration who has the power to modify the Direction should it take the view that this is 
required.  
 
If the Article 4 Direction subject to this report is confirmed, the Council must, as soon as 
practicable after a direction has been confirmed give notice of such confirmation and the date 
on which the direction will come into force by the methods required by paragraphs 1 (11) and 
(12) of Schedule 3 of the GPDO (i.e. by way of a press advert, site notices in at least two 
locations to which the direction applies and unless considered impracticable, by serving the 
notice on the owner and occupier of every part of the land within the area or site to which the 
direction relates). Additionally a copy of the direction as confirmed must be sent to the Secretary 
of State. 
 
If Council resolves to confirm the Article 4 Direction it shall come into force on 22 November 
2017. The Council should note that the Secretary of State, notwithstanding any resolution of 
confirmation by the Council, is empowered by paragraph 1 (13) of Schedule 3 of the GPDO to 
modify or cancel the Article 4 Direction at any time before or after it is confirmed. 
 
The Council can, by making a subsequent direction, cancel the Article 4 Direction (if confirmed) 
at any time. To modify the Article 4 Direction, it would need to be cancelled and a replacement 
Direction prepared incorporating the required modifications. In both cases, the normal 
procedures for making an Article 4 direction apply.  
 
Corporate Landlord 
 
There are no property and construction implications from the recommendations in this report. 
Should full Council decide that an Article 4 direction should be created then there may be some 
implications for Council owned office and industrial premises in the proposed areas. The 
Council's ownership of industrial property is limited to just one small property on Uxbridge 
Industrial Estate. The Council also owns a limited number of office properties in the proposed 
areas, the most notable of which is the Civic Centre. 
 
Background Papers: Consultation responses 

Page 136



Stockley Park

Uxbridge Town Centre

Heathrow Perimeter (Bath Road)
Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



")1

")2

")3

")4

")5

")6

")2

")1

2

Uxbridge Industria

Hayes Industrial A

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Council - 07 September 2017 

 

9.1 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR FLYNN TO THE CABINET MEMBER 

FOR EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES - COUNCILLOR SIMMONDS: 

 

Will the Cabinet Member please consider the introduction of a playing out scheme 
in Hillingdon? 
 

9.2 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR PALMER TO THE CABINET 

MEMBER FOR EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES - COUNCILLOR 

SIMMONDS: 

 

Could the Cabinet Member please provide an update following the Childrens' 
Centre review? 
 

9.3 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR HIGGINS TO THE LEADER OF THE 

COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PUDDIFOOT: 

 
Would the Leader of the Council please provide an update on the situation 
regarding the future of the Hillingdon Outdoor Activity Centre? 
 

9.4 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR STEAD TO THE CABINET MEMBER 

FOR FINANCE, PROPERTY AND BUSINESS SERVICES - COUNCILLOR 

BIANCO: 

 

Can the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Business Services please tell 
me how the Borough has done in this year's Green Flag awards? 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 9

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Council - 07 September 2017 

MOTIONS 

 

10.1 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR EAST 

 
That this Council calls upon the Leader to write to the Prime Minister and the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer, supporting the National Joint Council Pay claim and 
seeking additional funding to fund a decent pay rise and the Pay spine review. 

 
10.2 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR DHILLON 

 

That this Council is concerned that building control abuses by private companies 
appears to be increasing, including within our borough. The Council therefore 
calls upon the Leader to make these concerns known to the government and 
request that a more rigorous oversight of these companies be enacted. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Public Question Time
	6 Report of the Head of Democratic Services
	7 Accessible Hillingdon - Supplementary Planning Document
	170907 - 07 - SPD Accessible Hillingdon appendix

	8 Article 4 Direction To Protect Strategic Employment Land In The Borough
	170907 - 08 - Article 4 appendix 1
	170907 - 08 - Article 4 appendix 2

	9 Members' Questions
	10 Motions

